CITY OF ANTIOCH PLANNING COMMISSION

Regular Meeting October 19, 2016 6:30 p.m. City Council Chambers

Vice Chair Zacharatos called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. on Wednesday, October 19, 2016 in the City Council Chambers. She stated that all items that can be appealed under 9-5.2509 of the Antioch Municipal Code must be appealed within five (5) working days of the date of the decision. The final appeal date of decisions made at this meeting is 5:00 P.M. on Wednesday, October 26, 2016.

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioners Husary, Mason, Conley and Vice Chair Zacharatos

Absent: Commissioner Parsons, Hinojosa and Chair Motts
Staff: Director of Community Development, Forrest Ebbs

Assistant City Engineer, Lynne Filson

Contract Planner, Cindy Gnos City Attorney, Michael Vigilia Minutes Clerk, Kitty Eiden

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of Minutes: A. May 4, 2016

B. July 20, 2016C. August 17, 2016D. September 7, 2016E. September 21, 2016

A motion was made by Commissioner Mason, seconded by Commission Husary to approve the May 4, 2016 minutes. The motion carried the following vote:

Ayes: Husary, Mason, Zacharatos Absent: Parsons, Hinojosa, Motts

Abstain: Conley

Due to the lack of members present to vote in the majority, the Minutes of May 4, 2016, July 20, 2016, August 17, 2016, September 7, 2016 and September 21, 2016 were continued to the next meeting.

NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS

2. AR-16-02 – AVIANO – Aviano Farms, LLC, requests design review approval and a use permit for phases 2 and 3 of the 533 single family Aviano development, as well as the accompanying mailboxes, landscaping, sound walls, fencing, and entry features. The project site is located west of the current terminus of Hillcrest Avenue, east and north of Dozier Libby Medical High School (APNs 057-050-022 and 057-030-050).

Contract Planner Gnos presented the staff report dated October 14, 2016 recommending that the Planning Commission approve the use permit for phases two and three and the design review application (AR-16-02) for the 533-unit single family subdivision known as Aviano subject to the conditions contained in the attached resolution (see Attachment B).

In response to Commissioner Conley, Director of Community Development Ebbs explained the Antioch Unified School District owned property in the Sand Creek Focus Area, collected fees for school impacts and a school site for this area was in their long range plan.

In response to Commissioner Mason, Director of Community Development Ebbs stated staff felt 42 inches was adequate for fencing around the basins.

Commissioner Mason expressed concern for the height of the fence and the potential of children climbing over it and drowning in the basin.

Assistant City Engineer Filson clarified water would only be in the basin directly after a rain storm; however, the Planning Commission could require the applicant to build a higher fence if they felt it was necessary.

Commissioner Mason stated there were security concerns regarding visibility of the entryways on plan #1 and #4.

Contract Planner Gnos responded that in those instances the applicant had made the front porch larger to enhance visibility. Additionally, the plotting plan indicated the unit with the door on the side would most often be located on a corner lot.

Vice Chair Zacharatos opened the public hearing.

Michael Evans, DeNova Homes Project Manager, gave a brief background of their project and noted this was the final step to entitlement. He reported they had started biological work on the site.

Erik Gellerman, Gates and Associates, gave an overhead presentation of the revised tentative map book which included the illustrative land plan, lifestyle hub and sports zone as well as the landscaping plan and streetscape.

In response to Commissioner Conley, Mr. Evans clarified there would be left and right turn lanes exiting the subdivision.

Steve Bowker, OAG Architects, gave an overhead presentation of the architecture, materials and elevations for the development.

In response to Commissioner Conley, Mr. Bowker stated they would be providing tankless water heaters and air conditioning units would be located in the rear side yards.

In response to Commissioner Mason, Assistant City Engineer Filson explained this was the first project with the new LED street light standard and they would be much brighter.

Mr Bowker noted the new energy code would be implemented in January and the lights in the homes would also be LED.

Vice Chair Zacharatos closed the public hearing.

Vice Chair Zacharatos stated she liked the new elevations and landscaping plan.

Commissioner Husary thanked the applicant for the high quality project and providing options for three car garages and patio covers.

In response to Commissioner Conley, the applicant indicated one HOA would cover the entire development.

Commissioner Mason stated he supported the project and the positive changes brought forth by the applicant. He reiterated his concern regarding the height of the fencing around the basins and requested that they be increased to a minimum of five feet.

In response to Vice Chair Zacharatos, the applicant clarified they were working with the post office for the route and location of the mailboxes.

Commissioner Conley agreed with Commissioner Mason regarding the need to increase the height of fencing around basin.

In response to Commissioner Conley, Michael Evans stated they were in agreement with the conditions of approval including as revised this evening.

A motion was made by Commissioner Conley to approve the use permit for phases two and three and the design review application (AR-16-02) for the 533-unit single family subdivision known as Aviano subject to the conditions contained in the attached

resolution with direction to the applicant to increase the height of the wall adjacent to the detention basins.

Assistant City Engineer Filson explained there were two different types of storm water basins, one to clean the water and one to hold the water. She stated the area being utilized for the dog park, would rarely see standing water of more than 6 inches. She noted the southern basin was anticipated to have more water; however, it was designed for water to soak in or flow out through a pipe during large storm events.

The applicant noted as currently designed all the water in the basin would dissipate within 72 hours.

Following discussion, the motion was revised as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-21

On motion by Commissioner Conley, seconded by Commissioner Mason, the Planning Commission approved the use permit for phases two and three and the design review application (AR-16-02) for the 533-unit single family subdivision known as Aviano subject to the conditions contained in the attached resolution, adding a condition of approval that the applicant increase the wall adjacent to the southern basin to 60 inches. The motion carried the following vote:

AYES: Husary, Zacharatos, Mason and Conley

NOES: None ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Parsons, Hinojosa and Motts

3. EMERGENCY SHELTER REZONE – The City of Antioch is proposing to rezone the 4.89-acre vacant parcel directly south of the intersection of East Leland Road/Delta Fair Boulevard and Century Boulevard from Mixed Commercial/Residential (MCR) District to Mixed Commercial/Residential (MCR) District and Emergency Shelter (ES) Overlay District (APN 074-080-034).

Director of Community Development Ebbs presented the staff report dated October 10, 2016 recommending that the City Council rezone the property denoted as Assessor's Parcel Number 074 - 080-034 from Residential High Density Residential (R-35) to Residential High Density (R-35) and Emergency Shelter (ES) Overlay District.

In response to the Commission, Director of Community Development Ebbs stated staff had not received any applications for a shelter. He noted if another use were approved for this site, the City would be under no obligation to replace it, as they were in compliance; however, they felt this site was much more amenable to a meaningful project.

Vice Chair Zacharatos opened and closed the public hearing with no members of the public requesting to speak.

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22

On motion by Commissioner Conley, seconded by Commissioner Mason, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council rezone the property denoted as Assessor's Parcel Number 074 - 080-034 from Residential High Density Residential (R-35) to Residential High Density (R-35) and Emergency Shelter (ES) Overlay District. The motion carried the following vote:

AYES: Husary, Zacharatos, Mason and Conley

NOES: None ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Parsons, Hinojosa and Motts

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

None.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

None.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

None.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

Vice Chair Zacharatos adjourned the Planning Commission at 7:31 P.M. to the next regularly scheduled meeting to be held on November 2, 2016.

Respectfully Submitted, Kitty Eiden